
South Haven City Hall is Barrier-free and the City of South Haven will provide the necessary reasonable auxiliary aids 
and services for persons with disabilities, such as signers for the hearing impaired and audio tapes of printed 
materials being considered at the meeting to individuals with disabilities at the meeting upon seven (7) days notice to 
the South Haven City Clerk. Individuals with disabilities requiring services should contact the City Clerk by writing or 
calling South Haven City Hall at (269) 637-0700. 
 

 

Construction Board of Appeals 
 

 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
 
Wednesday, November 6, 2013 
4:00 PM, Conference Room A 
City Hall 

 City of South Haven 
                                                                      

 

              
 

1. Call to Order – Chair Morse 
 

2. Roll Call 
 

3. Approval of Agenda 
 

4. Approval of Minutes – May 31, 2013 
 

5. Interested Citizens in the Audience Will be Heard on Items Not on the Agenda 
 

6. NEW BUSINESS 
 
229 Elkenburg 

 
7. Adjourn 

 

 
 
 
 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED, 
 
Linda Anderson 
Zoning Administrator 
 

November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 1 of 60



1 

 

Construction Board of Appeals 
 

 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
 
Friday, May 31, 2013 
4:00 PM, Conference Room A 
City Hall 

 City of South Haven 
                                                                      

 

              
  

1. Call to Order  
 
In lieu of a chair, motion by Morse, second by DeVinney to call the meeting to order.  
All In favor. Motion carried. 

 
2. Roll Call 

 
Present: Dennis DeVinney, Mark Dibble, Edward Morse, Bryan Lundgren (arr. 4:08 p.m.) 
Absent:  None 
 
Also present:  Ross Rogien, Building Official; Butch Kelley, Hearing Officer 
 

3. Election of Chair and Vice Chair 
 

Motion by DeVinney, second by Kelly to elect Morse as the chair.  
 All in favor. Motion carried. 
 
 Motion by Morse, second by DeVinney to appoint Dibble as co-chair. 
 All in favor. Motion carried. 
 

4. Approval of Agenda 
 

Motion by DeVinney, second by Dibble to approve the May 31, 2013 Construction Board 
of Appeals agenda as presented. 
All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
5. Approval of Minutes – September 13, 2011 

 
Motion by DeVinney, second by Dibble to approve the September 13, 2011 Construction 
Board of Appeals regular meeting minutes as written. 
All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
6. Interested Citizens in the Audience Will be Heard on Items Not on the Agenda 

 
There were none. 

November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 2 of 60



2 

 

 
7. NEW BUSINESS 

  
335 Center Street 
 
Butch Kelly, Hearing Officer noted that the owner is a no show; has had ample time to 
make improvements and has not responded to continued efforts by the city to bring the 
building up to code. Pointed out that there is an authorization from the owner that the 
structure should be demolished, an estimate from John Brush, building contractor, 
regarding the condition of the building and members of the board have viewed and 
walked through the building.  
 
Lundgren arrived at 4:08 p.m. and apologized for his lateness. 
 
Dibble asked whether the city would get bids. Dibble asked if the owner has access to 
the building. Rogien explained that from the time of the board’s decision, the owner can 
back out, but Rogien doubts that he will. The owner could seek a court injunction but 
Rogien doubts that he will.  
 
The board discussed the issue of the owner having personal effects in the building and 
Rogien explained that up until the building is demolished, the owner may remove his 
personal property from the building. There was discussion of asbestos abatement and 
the costs of abatement. It was noted by Rogien that two environmental teams have gone 
through the building in the past week, probably asbestos and hazmat teams. The realtor, 
Tina Goodrich, from Jaqua, says there is some interest in the property if the building is 
taken down, according to Rogien. Dibble made some guesses what it would cost to bring 
the building down. More discussion ensued regarding what it will cost to abate the 
asbestos before the demolition. 
 
The board discussed the grant which the State has offered to remove blighted buildings; 
without the grant the demolition would have to be funded by the City, only to be 
recovered when the property sold at some unknown time in the future. 
 
Motion by Lundgren to authorize the city to tear down the building at 335 Center Street 
because it meets the criteria set by the city for a dangerous building. Second by 
DeVinney. 
All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
8. Adjourn 

 
Motion by Dibble, second by DeVinney to adjourn at  4:16 p.m.  
All in favor. Motion carried. 
 
 
RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED, 
Marsha Ransom 
Recording Secretary 

November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 3 of 60



Construction Board of Appeals 
Staff Report 

November 6, 2013 

Construction Board of Appeals Staff Report 

 
Agenda Item #6 
229 Elkenburg Street 

 
City of South Haven 

 

 
Background Information: On July 17, 2013, Ross Rogien, city building official, sent a certified 
letter to Sittes, LLC in Grand Rapids, MI concerning the condition of the building at 229 
Elkenburg Street.  Mr. Rogien stayed in contact with the owner hoping to establish a timetable 
to make repairs or demolish the building. During this period, the owner, Sittes, LLC, asked that 
the city consider Mr. Trenkle as the point of contact in these matters. Mr. Trenkle had indicated 
repeatedly that the building can be repaired and that those repairs would be completed by the 
August 28, 2013 deadline. That date passed without any corrective action being taken; no 
permits have been issued and there is no evidence of any ongoing work.  Although Mr. Trenkle 
is insistent that the building is repairable, the building official does not agree and has 
determined the building, particularly the north walls and loading dock area, is in danger of 
collapse.  
 
The city scheduled the Hearing Officer to meet with the city and the property owner on 
September 26, 2013. The property owner and his representative, Mr. Trenkle, were noticed of 
the meeting by certified mail. Mr. Trenkle attended, representing Sittes, LLC.  At the meeting, 
the Hearing Officer, Butch Kelley, upheld the building inspector’s decision that the building at 
229 Elkenburg needed to be demolished. He gave the owner until October 31, 2013 to carry out 
the order. To date, no demolition permit has been issued for the building. 
 
In accordance with the City Code of Ordinances, Article IX, Dangerous Buildings and 
Structures, Sec. 10-226, the city shall now convene the construction board of appeals (CBA) to 
hear the final local appeal to the demolition order. Attached to this agenda, you will find the cost 
comparison for repair and for demolition as prepared by John Brush as well as the city 
assessor’s determination of value. 
 
Recommendation: Staff recommends that the CBA uphold the hearing officer and John Brush 
report to demolish the building at 229 Elkenburg. 
 
Support Material: 
 
Correction letters and notices to the property owner 
Hearing Officer’s Decision 
Minutes of the Hearing Officer Meeting (9.26.2013) 
Cost comparison report (by City Assessor) 
John Brush report and photos 
Additional Interior Shots 
 
RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED, 
 
Linda Anderson 
Zoning Administrator 

November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 4 of 60



November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 5 of 60



November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 6 of 60



November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 7 of 60



November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 8 of 60



November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 9 of 60



November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 10 of 60



November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 11 of 60



November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 12 of 60



Construction Board of Appeals 
 

 
City of South Haven 
Minutes of Hearing Officer’s Findings 
 
Thursday, September 26, 2013 
3:00 p.m., Conference Room A     
                     City of South Haven 

 

 
 

1. Call to Order at 3:00 p.m. 
 

Present:  Benno Trenkle, representing J. Karrip, the owner of the building at 229 Elkenburg; 
Ross Rogien, Building Official; Butch Kelly, Hearing Officer; Linda Anderson; Planning & 
Zoning. 

 
2. 229 Elkenburg – Hearing Officer Findings and Order 

 
Benno Trenkle explained that he lives here in South Haven; he stores some things in the 
building at 229 Elkenburg and is here at the request of and as a representative of J. Karrip, 
the owner. 
 
Kelly, the Hearing Officer, explained that the owner was notified of unsafe issues such as 
broken windows; roofing which is leaking, masonry that is failing; and general life safety 
issues. Kelly noted that the owner was ordered to board up the windows and remediate 
unsafe conditions. To date the owner has not repaired anything; has not boarded up the 
windows and has not submitted anything such as a plan or architectural drawings. None of 
the issues outlined in the notices have been addressed by the owner; the owner is not here 
and has not provided any information about plans for the building.  
 
Trenkle noted that he has shown the building to Pitch Demolition, Holland; he thinks it was 
Pitch Demolition but he is not sure. The demolition company is supposed to be providing 
information on demolition and salvage. Trenkle stated that there are also a couple of 
business people from the North Side who want to provide jobs for the community. One is a 
woman who has a thriving business; she and a builder have been looking at beams and 
Trenkle feels that the beams are still good; but the second floor floors would have to be 
removed. Trenkle stated that the woman who wants to move her business in there wants to 
preserve the façade along Elkenburg/Kalamazoo. Trenkle thinks architecturally and 
historically the structure should be preserved. 
 
Kelly noted the Construction Board of Appeals will have to have architectural drawings and 
a valid plan by the time of the appeals hearing. 
 
R. Rogien asked who the builder is to which Trenkle responded that he did not know. Ross 
asked whether this woman has the money to renovate that building. Trenkle said there is 
money out there; as a woman she is a minority and her business, embroidering doll faces 

November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 13 of 60



  September 26, 2013 
  Hearing Officer Findings 
  Minutes DRAFT 
   

2 

 

that look like pictures of the children for whom the dolls are ordered, could be moved into 
that building; wants to provide jobs for the minority community. Trenkle stated something to 
the effect that this woman should be able to get a grant for one hundred thousand dollars 
($100,000.00). Rogien questioned how far one hundred thousand dollars $100,000.00 
would go to cover the needed repairs.   
 
Kelly asked whether the mechanical, electrical and plumbing are operational. Trenkle said it 
is turned off but it is all there; nothing has been disconnected. 
 
Kelly stands behind the building official’s determination and orders the structure at 229 
Elkenburg be demolished. He has given the owner until October 31, 2013 to completely 
demolish the building and restore the property. Mr. Trenkle was informed that there will be 
an appeals hearing scheduled in approximately thirty (30) days and the owner, not Mr. 
Trenkle, will have to bring the drawings, plans, etc. to that appeals hearing if they wish to 
appeal the demolision order. Kelly stated that there must be professional drawings here to 
be presented to the board and if the board agrees to repair the structure the owner must 
meet the time line set by the board for when various parts of the work must be completed. 
Kelly restated that the owner needs to be here for the appeal hearing.  
 
Trenkle asked whether the owner had gotten anything from the city in regards to this 
meeting. Rogien stated that the notifications were sent to the owner and he received them, 
both by regular and certified mail. A return receipt is on file in the city building department. 
Trenkle asked whether the owner had provided his new address and Anderson responded 
that the city has the new address. 
 
Ross said the owner needs to be in contact and he needs to get his plan together for the 
appeals hearing. 
 
Trenkle asked if Jimmy Karrip will be notified. Anderson explained the process; staff has five 
(5) days to finish the minutes and receive the hearing officer’s finding of fact; Karrip will be 
notified by certified mail at the new address he provided to Anderson of the date and time of 
the Construction Board of Appeals meeting.  
 
Ross asked about the drums of unknown fluid; Trenkle noted that they are still stored in a 
contained room with no leaks or problems.  
 
Kelly noted that the water leaking from the roof plays havoc with the masonry and that 
building needs a lot of maintenance. Trenkle noted that he totally understands; but he is a 
woodworker and does not do much with brick and mortar. 
 
Kelly reiterated that he agrees with the Building Official, Rogien, and his order for the 
structure to be demolished before October 31, 2013. The owner has until the Construction 
Board of Appeal meeting to provide the plans and drawings.  

 
3.   Adjourn at 3:15 p.m.                                                            
 
RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED, 
Marsha Ransom 
Recording Secretary 

November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 14 of 60



November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 15 of 60



November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 16 of 60



November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 17 of 60



November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 18 of 60



November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 19 of 60



November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 20 of 60



November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 21 of 60



November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 22 of 60



November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 23 of 60



November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 24 of 60



November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 25 of 60



November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 26 of 60



November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 27 of 60



November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 28 of 60



November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 29 of 60



November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 30 of 60



November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 31 of 60



November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 32 of 60



November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 33 of 60



November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 34 of 60



November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 35 of 60



November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 36 of 60



November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 37 of 60



November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 38 of 60



November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 39 of 60



November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 40 of 60



November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 41 of 60



November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 42 of 60



November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 43 of 60



November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 44 of 60



November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 45 of 60



November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 46 of 60



November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 47 of 60



November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 48 of 60



November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 49 of 60



November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 50 of 60



November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 51 of 60



November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 52 of 60



November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 53 of 60



November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 54 of 60



November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 55 of 60



November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 56 of 60



November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 57 of 60



November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 58 of 60



November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 59 of 60



November 6, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals 
Page 60 of 60


	11-6-2013 CBA Agenda page
	05-31-2013 CBA Minutes draft
	#6. 229 Elkenburg Street
	#6. Staff Report - 229 Elkenburg Street
	Letters to Owner of 229 Elkenburg
	Hearing officer decision
	09-26-2013 CBA Hearing Officer Minutes
	SEV vs Est. Cost of Repair 229 Elkenburg Street
	Code Compliance Checklist & Support Material
	Additional Photos




